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REV THOMAS WILLIAM CARR, ‘M.A.
188%2.

The Rev. Thomas William Carr was an accomphshed geneal—
ogist and for nearly 30 years a member of our society, yet he
favoured us with only one commumcatlon, and that a very short
one. He was born at Clifton, Bristol,'on the 14th July, 1830,
educated at Cheam school and Wadham College, Oxford, at
“hich latter place he took his degrees, B.A., in 1853"and M.A.
in 1854. Was ordained by the Archblshop “of Canterbury, and
after various curacies, obtained the living .of Loddington, North-
ants, in 1857, and that of Barming, near Maidstone, in 1865.
He was made rural dean of North Malling in 1891. He owned,
for some years, the estate of Eshott Heugh, in Northumberland,
under the will of Sir Culling E. Eardley, bart., his relative
His communication to our Society consisted of a few notes which
appear in our Proceedings, - series 11, vol. iii, p. 61. He
wrote also some notes on the name of Cari in. Welford’s
Newcastle and Gateshead, vol. i, p. 411, His chiéf effort in local
literature was the compilation of the third of three folio volumes -
issued by the late Col. Ralph F ]]dward and Cuthbert Ellison Carr,
of Dunston Hlll near Whickham, on the History of .the- Famzly
of Carr. He died on the 26th of December 1912,

P UBLICATIONS.

The Hlstory of the Famlly of Carr of Woodhall, Lesbury Eshott and
Hetton. Vol.iii. 1889. .
A Retrospect for my Frlends in Felton. 1910.

CHARLES BERTIE PtILLE:INfE BOSANQUET.--
1883, ’

Born December r)7 1834 Mr. C B. P. Bos'anquet was
educated at Eton, matrwulated at Balliol College, Oxford, where
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he took his degrees, B.A. in 1857 and M.A. in 1859, admitted
student at Lincoln’s Inn in 1858, and was called to the Bar in
1861. Elected a member of the Berwickshire Naturalists’ Club
in 1859, he assisted his father in preparing a paper which
appears in the club’s 7'ransactions, vol. vi., on the history of the -
family estate of Rock, followed later by notes on the winters of
1878-9 and 1879-80. In 1890 he became a member of the com-
mittee appointed to compile a new history of Northumberland.
Mr. Bosanquet was a justice of the peace, a member of the Aln-
wick Board of Guardians, chairman of the Rural Sanitary
Authority of that town, and honorary secretary of the Newcastle
Diocesan Conference and Church Extensmn Committee. He died
on the 18th June, 1905.

JOHN ROBERTS BOYLE, F.S.A.
1883.

John Roberts Boyle was born at Accrington in 1853, educated
at Manchester Grammar school, and at a comparatively early age
entered the Swedenborgian ministry. He came from Hull 1o
Newcastle, to take ministerial charge of the New Jerusalem
Church, in 1883, and, being a cultured antiquary, joined our
Society shortly after his arrival. His success in collecting anti-
quarian material among us was surprising; his energy and in-
genuity in gathering up scattered threads of local history and
weaving them into consecutive narrative, was quite phenomenal.
He read papers, compiled books, and took an active part in all
our discussions, and, while he earnestly maintained his own
readings and renderings, his manners were suave, ‘and bland,

~and void of offence. For eleven years he remained with us, then
returned to Hull, and there, in September, 1907, he died. The
following list comprises the most part of his writings :—
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ARCHAEOLOGIA AELIANA. SERIES II.
Vol. x.

On the Monastery and Church'of St. Paul’s, Jarrow. With Plate, etec.
P. 195.
On the Windows in the Church of St. Paul’s, Jarrow. With Plate. P.217.

Vol. xi.
On the Monastery and Church of St. Peter, Monkwearmouth. With
Plates. P. 33.
Vol xii.

The Plate and Insignia of the Corporation of Newcastle-upon Tyne
Tllustrated. P. 236.
Vol. xiii.
The Insignia and Plate of the Corporation .of Morpeth Illustrated.
P. 201.
Vol. xiv.

Chrlstopher Hunter’s Copy of Bourne’s Hlstory of Newcastle. P. 167.
Vol. xvi. '
The Goldsmiths of Newcastle. With Autographs. P. 397.

PROCEEDINGS OF THE SOCIETY. SERIES II.
Vol. i.

Description of St. Peter’s Church, Monkwearmouth, and St. Paul, Jarrow,
and a Paper on ‘ The Saxon Churches of Northumberland and Durham’ read
a; the meeting of the Archaeological Institute in Newcastle. Pp. 252, 253, 258.

Vol. ii.

The Chapel of St. Lawrence, Newcastle. With Illustration. P. 15.

Translation of Licence to consecrate St. Margaret’s, Durham. " P. 29.

Notes of a Visit to the Saxon Churches of Northamptonshire. With
Illustrations. P. 116. . .

A Catalogue of Books for Sale by Auction on Tyne Bridge in 1693. P. 157.

St. Edmund’s Chapel, Gateshead. P. 160.

Vol. iii.

Communion Plate of St. Andrew’s Church, Newcastle. P. 24.

Communion Plate of St. Andrew’s and St. John’s. P. 48.

St. Mary’s Church, Morpeth. P. 104.

West Boldon Church. P. 135.

West Boldon Hall.. P. 136.-

Parish Registers. P. 174.

The Carville Sundial. P. 197.

Communion Plate of St. Mary’s, Gateshead. P. 236.

Chester-le-Street Church. P. 297.
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Vol. iv.

The Piscina of St. John’s Church, Newcastle. P. 233.
The History of Northumberland. Pp. 256, 261.

Notes on the Chapel of the Virgin at Jesmond. P. 263.
Notes on King John’s Palace, Jesmond. P. 265.

Vol. ¥.

Notes on the Cony:ers Falchion. P. 27.
On Four Memorial Brasses in the County of Durham. P. 126.

OTHER PUBLICATIONS.

The Barton Inventory of 1619.- 1879.

Memoirs of Master John Shawe. 1882.

Saxon Architecture in Northamptonshire. 1885:

Guide to the Keep and Great Gate of the Castle of Newcastle -upon-Tyne.
1885.

Notes on Corbridge’s Actual Survey of Newcastle- -upon-Tyne. 1889,

The Roman Wall. A Reconsidération of_ its Problems. (In Archaeological
Review, September, 1839.)‘

Notes on the Lost Towns of the Humber. 1889. )

Holy Trinity Church, Hull. A Guide and Description. 1890.

Vestiges of Old Newcastle and Gateshead. Illustrated by Ww. H Knowles.
1890.

The .Cathedral Church of S%. Nlcholas Ilustrated by W H. Knowles.
1891. .

The Holderness Coast. 1891.

Comprehensive Guide to the County of Durham. With Maps and Plans.
1892.

A Modern therary Fraud : the Johnson MSS. 1893.

The Early H1story “of the Town and Part of Hedon, with 13 Illustrations.
1895.

Numerous Papers and Articles in the Monthly Chronicle of’ North C’ountry
Lore and Legend, and various Hull papers and perlodmals .

JOHN PATTISON GIBSON, F.S.A.
1883.

Few men have been more t11010uo*111y imbued with the spirit
of exploration into Roman antiquities than J. P. Gibson. Born
at Hexham on the 4th of January, 1838, son of W. W. Gibson,
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" of that town, he was educated at the local Grammar Sch001 and

at the Grammar School of Newcastle, and followed his father in .

_his business as a chemist. Studying photography in the early
infancy of the art, he devoted himself to the production of pic-
turesque landscapes and the numerous medieval churches, towers
and peles in which his native county abounds. These led him
into the study of archaeology and gave him that bias towards
the investigation of Roman rule in Britain which distinguished
the greater part of his life. ~After the death of Mr. Clayton and
Dr. Bruce, he was our recognised local authority on all subjects
connected with the Roman Wall. He at first maintained, con-
trary to Dr. Bruce, that Severus built the wall, but in later years
he changed sides and became a devoted adherent to the theory of
the latter, that Hadrian was the builder. Itis to his energy and
perseverance that we owe much of modern exploration on the
course of the Wall. His diggings among mile castles and wall tur-
rets, revealed features not suspected or imperfectly appreciated by
older explorers.  Although the oft debated question of the
builder remained unsolved, Mr. Gibson’s researches contributed
to its elucidation. In addition to his membership of our
Society, Mr. Gibson was on the committee of the Durham and
Northumberland Architectural and Archaeological Society, and
acted as guide, philosopher and friend when that Society, and
our own, in 1904, visited the Roman Stations of Borcovicus and
Procolitia. . . '
While he devoted the greater part of his time to photography
and archaeological investigation, Mr. Gibson was not unmindful
of the sterner duties which await the patriotic citizen. From
the age of twenty-five he was an enthusiastic volunteer. When
he retired from the service, ten years before his death, which

occurred on the 22nd of April, 1912, he carried with him the

rank of major, and received the Victoria decoration.  He was
also, in his later years, a gifted and welcome lecturer. It was

W

gu\ [
.
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a source of great delight to see him on the platform, discoursing,
as was his wont, on Northumbrian history, scenery, and his
beloved Roman Wall. _

The papers which he read to our Society and the discussions
in which he took part are enumerated below :— '

ARCHAEOLOGIA AFLIANA. SERIES II.
Vol. xii.
The Bells of the Priory Church of St. Andrew, Hexham. P. 299.
Vol. xxiii.
Lecture and Exhibit of Pictures on the Roman Wall. P. xi.

Vol. xxiv.

Mucklebank Wall Turret. With Plate and Illustration. P. 13.
- On Excavations at Great Chesters (Aesica) in 1894, 1895 and 1897. With
Plan and Illustrations. P. 19.

IBiD. SERIES III.
Vol. v.

Recently Discovered Roman Inscriptions. By J. Pattison Gibson and
F. Gerald Simpson. With Illustrations. P. 158. :

The Roman Fort on the Stanegate at Haltwhistle. By J. Pattison Gibson
and F. Gerald Simpson. With Plans and Illustrations. P. 213. -

PROCEEDINGS OF THE SOCIETY. SERIES II.
Vol. v.

Remarks on Photographs of the Antonine Wall and of the Roman Wall.
P. 117.

Notes on a Map of the Country between the Tyne and the Solway, made
about the Middle of the 18th Century, showing the Roman Wall, etc. P. 161.
Remarks on a Newly Discovered Altar to Jupiter at Wallsend. P. 165.

On the Styca. P. 213.

On the Making of Bows. P. 238,

Remarks on Photographs of the Vallum and Murus in the Neighbourhood
of the Mucklebank Turret. P. 228.

Vol. vi.

On the Roman Military Organisation and the Roman Daily Life in North
umberland. P. 145.
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IBrp. SERIES III.
Vol. i.

Addresses at Country Meeting at Housesteads with Durham and Northum-
berland Archaeological Society. P. 205.
Vol. ii.
Ancient British Graves near Dilston. P. 50.

Note on a Pre-conquest Stoné at Hexham Priory Church. P. 232.
_ Remarks on the Mural Problem. P. 305.

Vol. iii.

. On Haltwhistle burn Camp. Pp. 40, 79, 162.
Excavations per Lineam Valli. P. 218.

: Vol. iv.
On Over Denton Church. P. 186.
- Vol. v.
" Onan Anghan Cross found at Hexham. P. 1.

WILLIAM SEARLE HICKS.
1883.

W. S. Hicks was the son of a Dorsetshire vicar, born on
the 6th of March, 1849. He came to Newcastle in 1866 as an
apprentice to Messrs. Austin and Johnson, architects. Shortly
after the term of his servitude expired, namely, in 1875, he
joined the firm as a partner, and so remained till 1882, when he
began to practice on his own account. Among his early under-
takings were the rebuilding of churches at Shilbottle, Lambley
and Blyth, and the restoration of the church of St. John Lee,
near Hexham. Thereafter a long list of ecclesiastical edifices,
by him built or restored testify to his professional acquirements

and activity. For a time he was diocesan surveyor for New-

castle, but apart from his business in that direction, his ser-

vices were in constant request for commercial and domestic

architecture in the district. Among other artistic productions he
designed the pastoral staff of Bishop Lightfoot of Durham. He
died on the 21st of November, 1902.

: .
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Mr. Hicks wrote for us the following :—

- ARCHAEOLOGIA AELIANA. SERIES II.
Vol. xii.
Notes on the Chapel of Our Lady at Seaton Delaval. P. 229.
Vol. xiii. o

Notes on Recent Discoveries at Kirkwhelpington Parish Church. Tllus-
trated. P. 47. S
Vol. xvii.

Plates and Drawings of Easington Church. P. 290.
PROCEEDINGS OF THE SOCIETY. SERIES II.
Vol. iii. '
Drawing of Cup and Plate belonging to the Merchants’ Company, New-

‘castle. P. 324.

Vol. vii.
Notes on Whalton Church. Illustrated. P. 212.

PROFESSOR EMIL HUBNER.
Honorary Member, 1883.

Emnil Hiibner was born at Diisseldorf in 1834, and educated at
Berlin and Bonn, becoming in 1870 professor of classical philol-
ogy at Berlin, having already attained distinction as a philologist
and archaeologist. He was elected an Honorary Fellow of the

" Society of Antiquaries of London, May 29, 1873. On July 25,

1883, on the motion of the Rev. William Greenwell, seconded by
Dr. Bruce, our Society honoured itself by electing him an honor-
ary member. From his gréat experience and erudition in Roman
epigraphy he was often appealed to by, or on behalf of, the Society
in cases of doubtful readings. He died February 27, 1901. The
memoir, which Mr. C. J. Bates read at the monthly meeting held
on March 27, 1901, was unfortunately mislaid and has never been
printed. Professor Hiibner contributed to our publications: —
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ARCHAEOLOGIA AELIANA. SERIES I1.
Vol. x.

On.Roman Signet Rings (in a letter to Dr. Bruce). P. 135.
On the Discovery of Roman Inscribed Altars, etc., at Housesteads. 'P. 155.

Vol. xi.
The Roman Annexation of Britain. P. 82.
Note on a Small Roman Altar from Magna. P. 283.

. Vol. xiii.
On an Inscription at Cliburn, P. 185.

Proceepives or THE SocieTy. SERIES II.
Vol. iii.

On a Bronze Patera from South Shields (p. 173); on a Roman Inscription
at Cliburn (p. 176); on a Roman Sculptured Fragment from Wigton. P. 250. -
Vol. iv.

On an Inscription to Coventina. P. 158.

Vol. v.
On the Wallsend Altar to Jupiter. P. 164,

OrHER PUBLICATIONS.

Inscriptiones Britanniae Christianae. 1876.
Corpus Inscriptionum Latinarum. 1869-1873.
Arqueologia de Espafia. 1888.

JOHN DANIEL LEADER, F.S.A.
Correspondent, 1883.

John Daniel Leader of Sheffield, was elected a Fellow of the
Society of Antiguaries of London in 1875, and died December 30,
1899. A Roman knife found at Cilurnum, about four feet below
the surface, shortly before his visit to-that place in 1883, gave
him special interest as connected with an industry of which
Sheffield is famous, and induced him to write a paper. on the
object.

ARCHAEOLOGIA AELIANA, SERIES II.
 Vol. x.
Notes on a Roman Knife found at Cilurnum. Illustrated. P, 115.

3 SER. VOL, X. 20
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OrHER PUBLICATIONS.

Records of the Burgery of Sheffield commonly called the Town Trust.
Mary Queen of Scots in Captivity (1569-1584). 1880. .
On the Templeborough Roman Camp near Rotherham.

REV. JOHN LOW LOW, M.A.
1883.

The Rev. John Low Low, born about 1817, was educated at
University College, Durham, where he obtained his degrees—-
B.A., 1846, M.A., 1849. His first curacy was that of St.
Margaret’s, Durham, which he occupied from 1844 to 1847;
thence went to be curate of Forest and Harewood, where he re-
mained till 1872 and then received the living. of Whittonstall -
near Shotley Bridge. He was a member, and one of the com-
mittee, of the Architectural and Archaeological -Society of
Durham and Northumberland, and in 1883 he joined our Society.
But his career as an antiquary was brief, for on the 8th of
February, 1888, aged 71, he died. He wrote the following papers
and books.

ARCHAEOLOGIA AELIANA. Smmé II.
Vol. xi.

On 'the Authorities for the History of St. Cuthbert. P. 18.

Whittonstall Church. Tllustrated. P. 180.

Coldingham Priory. P. 186.

PROCEEDINGS OF THE SOCIETY. SERIES II.
. Vol. i.
Description of Holy Island, at Archaeological Institute Meeting. P a18.
. Vol. ii.
The Chapel of St. Margaret‘, Durham. P. 29.
Further Remarks on Coldingham Priory. P. 258.
Vol. iii.

Qt. Ceolfrid, Abbot of Monkwearmouth and Jarrow, and.the Amiatine

Codex, P. 51. .
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ARCHITECTURATL AND ARCHAEOLOGICAL SOCIETY.
Vol. ii.
Middleton in Teesdale. P. 147.

OrBER PUBLICATIONS.

The Diocesan History of Durham. With Map and Plans. 1881.
The Diocese of Newcastle: Ancient Memories. 1882
Historic Scenes in Durham Cathedral. 1887. -

ROBERTIMORTON MIDDLETON, F.L.S., F.Z.S.
' -1883.

Robert Morton Middleton was a son of the manager of Messrs.

- Backhouse’s bank at Northallerton. He bore the same name as

his father, and was born at Sowerby, near Thirsk, on the 25th of
January, 1846. Educated at J ackson’s school, he very early in
life became absorbed in the pursuit of natural history and the
study of antiquity. In 1876 he removed to West Hartlepool,
where his father had acquired an interest in shipping, and for
several years followed the occupation of a shipowner. Tt was
while so engaged that in 1883 he joined our society. A couple of
years later, his health giving way, he and his family migrated to
the United States of America, and settled down in sunny Ten- .
nessee. Here too ill health, with family bereavement, pursued
him, and he returned to Ealing, near London, where he inter-
ested himself in church work, and especially in the operations of
the Bible Society, the Livingston Collége, the South American
Missionary Society, and the Society for the Protection of N ative
Races. Eventually he went out to Chili to work among the .
Araucanian Indians, and there he remained four or five years.
Coming home once more, he took up his residence at Kew, and
at that place, on the 9th of August, 1909, he died.

Mr. Middleton was a Fellow of the Linnean and Zoological
Societies and a member of the Anthropological Institute. He
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frequently lectured on various aspects of natural history, and,
at the time of his death, he was occupied in botanical work at the
South Kensington Natural History Museum, adding to the herb-
arium the plants he had brought from Chili, and arranging and -
classifying others. - His contributions_to our literature were as
follows : — '

ARCHAEOLOGIA AELIANA. SERIES II.
Vol. x.

On Some Vestiges of Roman Occupation between West Hartlepool and
Seaton Carew. P. 103. : C ’

On Yoden, a Medieval Site between Castle Eden and Easington. P. 186.

On a Leaden Tobacco Stopper, found at Castle Eden. P. 188.

On an Armlet of Fine Gold, found at Shotton. P. 189.

OrHER PUBLICATIONS.

The First Fuegian Collection. In the Journal -of Botany, June, 1908.
A Mountain Climb in Tennessee, with Notes on the Fauna and Ylora of
the Southern Appalachians. n.d.

THEODOR MOMMSEN.
Honorary Member, 1883.

Theodor Mommsen, born November 30, 1817, was a son of the
parsonage, his father being the pastor of Garding in Schleswig.
BEducated at Altona, and the University of Kiel, he was for a
short time editor of the Schleswig-Holstein Zeitung, but in 1848
was appointed professor of Civil Law at Leipzig. He was suc-
cessively professor of Roman Law at Zurich, in- 1852, and at
Breslau in 1854, and professor of Ancient History at Berlin in
1858. There he chiefly spent the remainder of his life, and there
he died, 1st November, 1903. A scholar of world-wide reputation
and a man of enormous industry, his literary output is stated to
have exceeded a thousand volumes and papers. He was elected
an Honorary Member of our society in 1883.
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CHaIEF PUBLICATIONS.

Corpus Inscriptionum Latinarum.
Monumenta Germaniae Historica.
Romische Geschichte. 1854

Romische Staatsrecht. 1871-1876.

WILLIAM SHAND.
Correspondent,. 1883.

- William Shand was the son of a Jamaica planter and landed
proprietor of the same name, who owned the estates of The Burn
and Arnhall in Kincardineshire. He was born in May, 1825, was
educated at home, with a tutor, and afterwards in Aberdeen, and
came to Newcastle as a clerk in the Bank of Xngland, whence he
went to London to fill a similar position. Returning to New-
castle, where he had married in 1852, he started business as an
accountant. Being a man of scholarly attainments, he formed
‘the acquaintance of cultivated citizens, who, meeting at each
‘others houses, discussed intellectual subjects and the problems
of the day. Arriong them were W. B. Scott the poet artist, Dr.
Hayle, a homeopathic physician, J. M. Maclean, then editor of
the Newcastle Chronicle, afterwards M.P., J. BE. L. Black, and
one or two others of like character and attainments. Ten years
later, about 1862, he went to St. Nazaire, for his relatives the
Scotts, well known Clyde shipbuilders, to superintend the con-
striction of several transatlantic steamers'for the French Govern-
ment. ‘In that work he was engaged for five or six years, and, on
its termination, he settled in Paris as an agent for various wine
growers. The Franco-Prussian war put an end to that business,
and he eventually came back to Newcastle. Having acquired a
knowledge of Greek and Latin at school, and being equally at
home in French, Italian, German and Spanish he, now in his
later life, took up the study of Oriental languages—Aramaic,
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Coptic, and Syriac—and became a member of the Newcastle
Hebrew Study Society. He died March 26, 1901, having con-
tributed to our pages:—
ARCHAEOLOGIA AELIANA. SERIES II.
Vol. x.
Memoir of Dr. Thomlinson, the Founder of the Thomlinson Library. P. 59.
“Vol. xv.

Researches into the Family Relatlonsh1ps of the Rev. Robert Thomlmson,
D.D. P. 340.

PROCEEDINGS OF THE SOCIETY. SERIES II.
Vol. i. ‘
Earthworks at the Pottery Bank, Stepney, Newcastle. P. 140.

GEORGE STEPHENS, F.S.A.
Honorary Member, 1883.

George Stephens, born at Liverpool, December 13, 1813, was
a son of the manse, his father being the Rev. John Stephens, an
eminent Methodist divine who, in his turn, filled the office of
President of the Wesleyan Conference. He was educated at
private schools and at University College, London, where he dis-
played a marked predilection for languages. On attaining man-
hood he settled at Stockholm where he remained until 1851, when
he was appointed lector (afterwards professor) of the English
language and literature in the University of Copenhagen. He
was elected a Fellow of the London Society of Antiquaries in
1861, and an honorary member of our society, June 27th, 1883.
An ardent student in philology and a prolific writer, both in
English and Danish, he worked and studied to the very end of a -
long life, for the writer of the present notice called on him at his
house No. 1, Bianco Luno’s Allée in Copenhagen, on August
6th, 1895; when he conversed with animation on archaeological
subjects. He died three days later on the 9th August, full of
years and honour. ‘
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ARCHAEOLOGIA AELIANA. SERIES II.
Vol. vi.
The Beckermet Inseription. With Plate. P. 191.
' Vol. vii,
The Bride Kirk Font. P. 118.

Vol. x.

On the Shaft of an Anglic Inscribed Cross discovered in the Church at
Chester-le-Street. With Woodcuts. P. 88.
On Roman Inscribed Altars at Housesteads. P. 166.

OTHER PUBLICATIONS.

The Old-Northern Runic Monuments of Scandinavia and England, now
first collected and deciphered. 4 vols. 1866-1901. '

Handbook to the Old Northern Runic Monuments of Scandinavia and
England. 1884.

The Runes, Whence Came They? 1894,

REV. WILLIAM PALEY ANDERSON.
Correspopdent, 1884.

The Rev. William Paley Anderson, born at Hickling Rectory,
Notts, in 1824, came of a Tyneside stock, being the son of the Rev.
Edward Anderson, by his marriage with Anne, daughter of that
eminent divine William Paley, Archdeacon of Carlisle and Rector
of Bishopwearmouth. Mr. Edward Anderson was admitted to.
the freedom of Newcastle, July 14, 1827, as son of Edward
Anderson, merchant adventurer, admitted free of the merchants
company March 1, 1748, as son of Abraham Anderson, who had
gained the freedom of that company, August 27, 1707, by serving
an apprenticeship with Lyonel Blagden. W. P. Anderson, the
subject of this notice, was educated at St. John’s College, Cam-
bridge, graduated B.A., 1847; M.A., 1850; B.D., 1857; and was
ordained deacon in 1852 and priest in 1853. He was fellow and
tutor of Emmanuel College from 1850 to 1857, when he accepted
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the college living of Winsford in Somersetshire. He was collated
to the prebend of Holcombe in Wells Cathedral, in 1892, and
died at Winsford Vicarage, February 13, 1908, aged 83. ‘

Claiming descent from Francis Anderson, sheriff of Newcastle
in 1560, the hero of the mythical story of the ‘ Fish and the Ring,’
“known to all local historians, Mr. Anderson exhibited this
famous ring to the Society on August 27, 1884, and described it
in a‘letter addressed to the Rev. E. H. Adamson which is printed
in the

PROCEEDINGS OF 1HE Socxmy. SERIES IL.
. Vol. i. -
The Salmon Ring.. P 165.

_« SIR GAINSFORD BRUCE, M.P. AND JUDGE.
1884.

Sir Gainsford Bruce, was the eldest son of Dr. John ‘Colling'-'
wood Bruce, and .was born in Newcastle in 1834. After being
educated by ‘his father and at Glasgow Un1vers1ty, he commenced
to study law, and in 1859 was ‘called to the Bar, and came the
Northern Clrcu1t He received the appointment of. Recorder of
Bradford in-1877, Solicitor General of the County Palatine of '
Durham in 1878, Attorney Gteneral in 1886 and Chancellor in
1887. In 1880 he unsuccessfully contested the borough of Gates-
head, and in 1883 that of Newcastle, and was finally elected to
Parliament, in 1888, for the Holborn division of Finsbury.
Having taken silk in 1883, he bécame a judge in the King’s
Bench division in 1892 when he was knighted, and remained on
the bench until failing health involved his resignation. He was
an hon. D.C.L. of Durham and a member of His Majesty’s Privy
Council.

In addition to all these honours Sir Gainsford was an enthusi-
astic yachtsman, being commodore of the Northumberland Yacht .
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Club, and a member of the Royal Yacht Club at Cowes. In free-
masonry, too, he held a distinguished place, having been Past
Grand Senior Warden of all England. '
It was not until Sir Gainsford had been somewhat relieved
from the pressure of public work that he found time to contri-
bute to our proceedings. He occasionally looked in at our
meetings, and gave us several of his late father’s plans, drawings,
etc., but beyond these transient visits, and a few small fugitive
notes, he did not participate in the society’s transactions. He
died on the 12th of February, 1512.
ARCEAEOLOGIA AELIANA. SERIES III.
Vol iii.
On the English Expedition into Scotland in 1542. With Illustrations. P.

191. .
PROCEEDINGS OF THE SOCIETY. SERIES III.
Vol. ii.
Notes on three Volumes of Sketches by the Richardsons and Others,
belonging to the Society. P. 384. '
Vol. iii. ]
Notes on a Rushlight Holder from a Surrey Cotbage and & ° Crusie” P. 28,
Vol. v.
Remarks on the Ancient City of Wisby in Gothland. ‘P. 248.

OTHER PUBLICATIONS.

The High Priest of Epona: A Lay of Ancient Rome. After Macaulay.
[Anonymous]. 1857. :

A Letter to the Right Worshipful the Mayor of Newcastle-upon-Tyne on
the Burgess and Non-Burgess Courts of Record of Newcastle-upon-Tyne. 1864,

REV. E. B. DWARRIS, M.A.
Correspondent, 1884.

During the visit of the Royal Archaeological Institute to
Newcastle the Rev. Canon Dwarris, vicar of St. Peter’s, Bywell,
contributed some notes on Bywell, with illustrations for the in-
formation of the visitors. They appeared in Archaeologia
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Aeliana, series 11, vol. X1, page I, but were superseded by the long
paper which the Rev. Anthony. Johnson of Healey, then his cur-
ate, read to the Society on the same subject shortly after. He was
a son of Sir Fortunatus Dwarris, F.R.S., born in London May
22, 1810, educated at Eton and University College, Durham,
ordained priest in 1841, proceeded M.A. in 1842, and, among
other appointments held the office of hon. canon of Newcastle and
chaplain to the bishop. Among his early curacies was that of
St. Andrew’s, Newcastle. He died on the 10th May, 1901, aged
84 years. '

RICHARD SAUL FERGUSON, F.S.A.
1884.

Richard Saul Ferguson, born July 28, 1837, son of Joseph
Ferguson of Carlisle, educated at Carlisle Grammar school,
Shrewsbury school, and St. John’s College, Cambridge, where he
took the degree of B.A.-in 1860, proceeding M.A. in 1863 and
LL.M. 1874, was called to the Bar at Lincoln’s Inn, in 1862, and
practised on the Northern.Circuit for about ten years. He was
elected a Fellow of the Society of Antiquaries of London in 1877,
and a member of our Society in 1884. He was also a Fellow of
the Society of Antiquaries of Scotland, a member of the Royal
Archaeological Institute, of the Surtees Society and one of the
founders of the Cumberland and Westmorland Archaeological
Society, and.in 1887 was appointed chancellor of the diocese of
Carlisle.- Devoted to his native city and county, Mr. Ferguson
extended his field of study in the one direction to Westmorland,
andin the other to the whole course of the Roman Wall, from sea
to sea. He died March 3, 1900, leaving behind him the reputa-
tion of a prodigious worker. His printed works comprise : —

ARCHAEOLOGIA AELIANA. SERIES II.
Vol. xi. .
On a Roman Inscribed Tombstone found in Carlisle. Illustrated. P. 127.
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Vol. xii.
Report of Excavations in Cumberland per lineam Valli. Illustrated.
P. 159. :
On a Roman Inscription discovered at Cliburn. Illustrated. P.289.
Vol. xiii.
An Unknown Percy Medal. Illustrated. P. 69.
Hadrian’s Great Barrier. P. 85.
The Wall and Vallum of Hadrian. P. 18L.
Potters” Marks [from Carlisle]. P. 198.

Vol. xx.
Picture Board Dummies at Raby and Callaly Castles. P. 278.

PROCEEDINGS OF THE SOCIETY. SERIES II.

Vol. ii.

On Roman Sepulchral Inscription from Carlisle. P. 25.

Notes on the Lapidarium Septentrionale. P. 142.

On Two Roman Inscriptions. P. 251.

On a Figure of Saturn. P. 328.
Vol. iii.

On Heworth Chalice and Paten. P. 48.

Site of Roman Bridge over Eden. P. 157,

On the Illegality of Disposing of Church Plate. P. 277.

The Retreat of the Highlanders in 1745. P. 278,

On Roman Sculptured Stone found at Carlisle. P. 307.

Vol. iv.
On Roman Remains found at Carlisie._ P. 40.
o Vol. v. )
'On Roman Inscriptions in Cumberland and Westmorland. P. 16.
On a Stockade discovered at Carlisle. P. 156.
On a Gold Coin of Beneventum found at Carlisle. P. 185.

On Discoveries at Tullic House, Carlisle. P. 185.
On Hardknot. P. 185.

He also edited

Twelve volumes of the Transactions of the Cumberland and Westmorland
Antiquarian and Archaeological Society. 1874-1894. '

Bishop Nicholson’s Visitation and Survey of the Diocese of Carlisle. 1877.

The Old Church Plate of the Diocese of Carlisle. 1882.
¢+ Some Municipal Records of the City of Carlisle (in conjunction with
W. Nanson). 1887.
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Denton’s Account of Cumberland. 1887.

Fleming’s Description of Cumberland. 1889.

Hugh Todd’s Account of the City and Diocese of Carlisle. 1890.

The Boke of Recorde of the Burgh of Kirkby Kendal. 1892.

Todd’s Notitia Ecclesiae Cathedralis Carliolensis. 1892.

Testamenta Karleolensia. 1893.

An Archaeological Survey of Westmorland, Cumberland and Lancashire
(with H. 8. Cowper). 1893.

The Royal Charters of Carlisle. 1894.

ARCHAEOLOGICAL JOURNAL.
Vol. xxxvii.
Observations on the Supposed Sword of Sir Hugh de Morville. P. 99.

Vol. xxxix.

Notes on the Initial Letter of a Charter of Edward 1r to the City of
Carlisle. P. 291.
: Vol. xli.
Civic Maces. P. 370.
Vol. xlii.
The Morpeth Great Mace. P. 90.
The Carlisle Bushel. P.303.
- Vol. xliv.
Culver-houses. P. 105.
Vol. xlv.
- Opening Address to the Section of Architecture at the Leamington Meet-
ing. P. 257.

Vol. xlvii.
Picture-Board Dummies at the County Hotel, Carlisle. P. 321.
Vol. xlviii. '
The Heraldry of the Cumberland Statesmen. P. 77.
Vol. 1.

On a Massive Timber Platform of Early Date uncovered at Carlisle.
P. 20. '
Vol. Hi.
Picture-Board Dummies. P. 1.
On a Dumb-bell at Knole. P. 45.
Notes on Two Curious Padlocks in the Carlisle Museum. P. 250.
On the Chap-books on the Bibliotheca Jacksoniana in Tulhe House
Carlisle. P. 292. .
Vol. liii.
Notes about Dumb-bells. P. 19.
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C Vol. Iv.
More Picture-Board Dummies. P. 183.

Vol. lvi.
Consistory Courts and Consistory Places. .P. 85.
. A Persian Talisman. P. 175.
Notes on a Door Lock. P. 180
OrEER PUBLIGATIONS

Early Cumberland and Westmorland Friends. 1871.

Cumberland and Westmorland M.P.’s from the Restoratlon to the Reform
B111 of 1867. 1871.

"" Short Account of Lanercost. (In con]une’clon with C. J. Ferguson ) 1870.
Moss Gathered by a Rolling Stone. 1873.
The Cumberland Fox-hounds, 1877. ’
Handbook to Places near-Carlisle. 1882.
History of Carlisle. 1889. }
History of Cumberland. 1898.

Axchaeological Survey of Westmorland Cumberland and Lancashire.
1893

History of Westmorland. 1894.

Carlisle Cathedral. 1898. i

Municipal Offices of Carlisle. In the Antiquary. Vol. xiv.

Retreat of the Highlanders in 1745. . In the Religuery, 2 ser., vol. ii.

REV. JOSEPH HIRST.
Correspondent, 1884.

The Rev. Joseph Hirst, eldest son of Joseph Hirst, of Leeds,
was born about 1843, and educated at the Roman Catholic
school of Radcliffe, near Leicester, St. Sulpice, Eichstadt, and
at the English College at Rome. He was ordained a priest at
Turin in 1872, and sérved successively the Roman Catholic
missions at Rugby and Wadhurst, being appointed president of
Rateliffe College, where he himself had been educated, in 1885.
He was elected a member of the Archaeological Tnstitute in 1884,
and for several years took a prominent part in its affairs, being
secretary of the Antiquarian section of the Newcastle meeting in
1884, and contributing many valuable papers to the publications.
He died at Manchester, October 20, 1895, aged 52. His con-
tributions to the publications of our Society were:—
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ARCHAEOLOGIA AELIANA. SERIES IT.
Vol. xi.
The Pfahl-Graben. P. 52.

PROCEEDINGS OF THE SOCIETY. SERIES II.
Vol. i,
Mining Operations of the Romans in Britain. P. 226.

ARCHAEOLOGICAL J OURNAL.

Vol. x1.
On the Existence of a British People on the Continent known to the
Romans in the First Century. P. 80.
On the Native Levies raised by the Romans in Britain. P. 243.
On a Roman Fire-Brigade in Britain. P. 327,

Vol. xli.

On the Methods used by the Romans for Extmgulshmg Conflagrations.
P. 155.
On the Rehglous Symbolism of the Unicorn. P. 230.

Vol. xlii.

On the Mining Operations of the Ancient Romans, with Special Reference
to Blast-furnaces. P. 20.- .
Vol. xlix.

On Guildship in Anglo-Saxon Monasteries. P. 107.

JAMES G. MOFFATT.
Correspondent, 1884.

James G. Moffatt, born about 1823 at Lilburn Cottage, in the
parish of Eglingham, was a son of Charles Moffatt, who for 52
years was agent to the Lilburn Tower estates. He died January
21, 1889, aged 66, and was buried, near his parents, in the
graveyard of the ruined chapel of Lilburn, a-hundred yards from
the house in which he was born and in which he died.

- The paper cited below was supplemented by an account con-
tributed to the Society on October 30, 1889, by Dr. James Hardy
on further discoveries on the same farm,
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ARCHAEOLOGIA AELIANA. SERIES II.
Vol. x.

Prehistoric Grave from the Lilburn-hill Farm, on the Lilburs Tower
Estate. With Plate, Woodcuts, etc. P. 220..

WILLIAM THOMPSON WATKIN.
Correspondent, 1884.

William Thompson Watkin, born in 1836, son of John
Watkin, of Salford, was engaged in mercantile pursuits at
Liverpool, where he took on him the duties of honorary librar-
ian of the Historic Society of Lancashire and Cheshire. He
devoted himself to the study of the Roman occupation of Britain,
was particularly successful in the decipherment of difficult
Roman inscriptions, and was the author of two valuable works
on the subject. He died March 23, 1888. His MSS. were pre-
sented to the Chetham Library in Manchester. A.list of his
printed writings may be found in the Transactions of the Lanca-
shire and Cheshire Antiquarian Soc1ety, Vol. vr.

Ancmnomem AxyLiaANA. SERIES II.
Vol. x.

Remarks upon Groups of Roman Milestones. P. 130.

. On the Discovery of Roman Inscribed Altars, etc., at Housesteads. Pp.
150, 155. .
_ Vol. xii. '
On Ingcriptions of the Roman Period. Pp. 290, 292.

PROCEEDINGS OF THE SOCIETY. SERIES II.
Vol. i,
Roman Inscription at Ilkley. P. 357.-
Vol. ii.
The Housesteads Altars. P. 6.
On the Crindledykes Milliaries, P. 88.

Roman Inscnptmns from Old Carlisle, Whitley Castle, and Ca.ervoran.
P. 158



A

320 THE SOCIETY OF ANTIQUARIES OF NEW CASTLE-UPON-TYNE.

OTHER 'PUBLICATIONS.

Roman Lancashire, or a Description of Roman Remains in -the County
Palatine of Lancashire. 1883-4. o

Roman Cheshire, or a Description of Roman Remains in the County of
Cheshire. 1886. 4to.

ROBERT MOWAT, F.S.A.
Correspondent, 1885.

Robert Mowat of the Rue des Feuillantones, Paris, major of
artillery in the French Army, officer of the Legion of Honour,
holder of the English Crimea medal, and honorary Fellow of the
Society of Antiquaries of London (elected June 17, 1888), was

"for some time Editor of Le Bulletin Epigraphique, and Secretary

of the National Society of Antiquaries of France. He was also
a member of several numismatic and archaeological societies. He
contributed several valuable papers and notices to our Society,
and died in 1912. The following is a list of them:—
: ARCHAEOLOGIA AELIANA. SERIES 1I.
. Vol. xiii.
Meaning of the Names Procolitia, Petrianae, Classiana, connected with
some Roman Auxiliary Troops in Britain. P. 371.
‘ Vol. xvii.
The Names of the Emperor Carausius, as revealed by the Carlisle Roman

Milestone. Illustrated. P. 281.
. Vol. xxv.

On Altars to Neptune and the Ocean. Illustrated. P. 136.
IBip. SERIES IIT.
Vol. iii.
The Capricorn of the Sccond Legion surnamed Augusta, and the Goat of -
the 23rd Regiment Royal Welsh Fusiliers. Illustrated. P. 213.
PROCEEDINGS OF THE SOCIETY. SERIES II.
Vol. ii.

The Original Name of Lancaster with Remarks on Similar Denominations.
P. 13. ’
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Vol. v.

Remarks on the Death of Mr. C. Roach Smith, F.§.A. P. 25. '
' Three Altars Consecrated to the Ollotot Goddesses at Binchester. P. 127.

IBiD. SERIES TII.
Vol. i.
The Benwell Altar to Antenociticus. P. 176.

DENNIS EMBLETON, M.D.
1886.

Dr. Embleton, a distinguished physician, antiquary and
naturalist, was born in Newcastle, October 1, 1810. A son of
Thomas Embleton, some time of East Chevington, he was educated
at the school of the Rev. George Newby, at Witton-le-Wear,
and, in 1827, began his apprenticeship to the medical profes-
sion under Thomas Leighton, a well-known Newcastle prac-
titioner. Having, in due course, completed his studies in Lon-
dor, he was admitted a member of the Royal College of Sur-
geons in 1834, and the following year became a licentiate of the
Society of Apothecaries. Then followed two years of travel
on the Continent, during which period he gained the degree of
M.D. at Pisa and attended medical courses in Paris. In 1837
he commenced practice in Newcastle. ~ Within a year there-
after he was appointed lecturer in anatomy and physiology, in
1852 reader in medicine at Durham University, where, in 1853,
he received his diploma of M.D., and in 1857 he became a
Fellow of the Royal College of Physicians. From 1858 to 1872
he was the representative of the University on the Gteneral
Medical Council, while, in 1870, the School of Medicine becom-
ing closer connected with the University, he was appointed the
first professor of medicine and of the practice of physic. He
was, moreover, physician to the Newcastle Dispensary, and phy-
sician, and afterwards consulting physician, to the Newecastle

3 SER. VOL- X, _ . 21



- 322 THE SOCIETY OF ANTIQUARIES OF NEWCASTLE-UPON-TYNE.

Infirmary. His connection with our Society dates from 1886,
but he was a member of the Literary and Philosophical Society
from 1828, and from 1878 a vice-president, while he joined the
Tyneside Naturalists’ Field Club at its formation in 1846. He
died November 12, 1900, aged 90. During his long and useful
life numerous papers and pamphlets on a variety of subjects
issued from his pen. Dr. F. W. Dendy, in a memoir-of him,
with which Vol. xxiii of our Archaeologia Acliana begins,
enumerates sixty papers, reports and addresses on medical sub-
jects alone.  These can be seen in thelvolume referred to, and
need not be entered here. ~Those which relate to Antiquities
and Natural History follow :—

ARCHAEOLOGIA AELIANA. SERIES II
Vol. xi.
Unde derivatur Corstopitum. P. 137.
Vol. xiii.
On Certain Peculiarities of the Dialect in Newcastle-upon-Tyne and

Northumberland. P. 72.
Vol. xv.

The Barber Surgeons and Wax and Tallow Chandlers of Newcastle-upon-
Tyne with Extracts from their Records. P. 228.
Vol. xvii.
The ‘ Quigs burmg Plas in Sidgatt,” Newcastle, the Swirle and the Lort
Burn. P. 84.
) : Vol. xviii.
Ruins of Buildings once existing on the Quayside, Newcastle. P. 258.

PROCEEDINGS OF THE SOCIETY. SERIES I1
- Vol. iv.

On a Roman Medicine Weight. P. 35.
Notes on Bones Discovered in Baileygate, Newcastle, and now in the
Black Gate Museum. P. 114.
_Vol. vi.

On the Discovery of Human Bones, made March 14, 1893, during the
Trenching Operations on the Town Moor, Newcastle, opposite Nos, 11 and 12
North Terrace. P. 21,
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TyNESIDE NaTURALISTS’ F1ELD CLUB TRANSACTIONS.
Vol. i _

Account of a Ribbon Fish (Gymnetrug) taken off the Coast of Northumber-
land. By Albany Hancock and Dennis Embleton. Illustrated. P. 288.

Vol. ii.

Presidential Address, March 22, 1851. P. 1.

On the Two Species of Rat in England. Illustrated. P. 103

On the Short Sunfish (Orthragoriseus Mola). Illustrated. P. 110.

Summary of. Observations on the Anatomy of Doris, a Nudibranchiate
Mollusk. By Albany Hancock and Dennis Embleton. P. 119

“Vol. iv.

Memorandum of the Occurrence of the Skeleton of the Bottlenose Whale
(Hyperoodon Butzkoff, Lacépede), and of the Skull of the Grampus (Delphmus
Orca, Cuvier), in the Bed of the Tyne. P. 50.

Vol. vi.

Notes on a Tumulus and its Contents at Grindstone Law, Northumberland.
By the Rev. Wm. Greenwell, M.A., and Dennis Embleton, M.D. P. 34. .

Naroran HistorY Sociery’s TRANSACTIONS. - SERIES II.
Vol. i.
On an Ancient British Burial at Ilderton, Northumberlaud, with, Notes on

the Skull. By the Rev. Wm. Greenwell, M.A. ., and Dennis Embleton, M.D
Illustrated. P. 143.

Notice of the Life of the late Joshua Alder, Esq. P. 324.

Vol. v. .
Memoir of the Life of Albany Hancock, F.L.S., etc. P. 118.

On the Vendace Coregonus Willoughbii (Yarrell), C. Maraenula (Jardine
and Jenyns). P. 146.

On the Skull and other Bones of Loxomma Allmanni (Huxley). from the
Low Main, Newsham, Northumberland. By D. Embleton and Thos. Atthey.
Ilustrated. P. 196.

Vol. vii.

A Paper on Eggs. P. 43.

Memoir of the Life of Mr., W. C. Hewitson, F.L.8S. Wlth Portrait. P.
223. .

Presidential Address, May 2nd, 1879. P. 241.
Vol. viii..

Note on the Birds seen at Nest House, Fellmg Shore in May and June,
1884. P. 219.

Note on the Qccurrence of Shnmps in the Tyne. P, 220,

e
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. Note on the Capture of Tunnies and of a fine specimen of the ‘ Bergylt,
or Norwegian Haddock off the Tyne, June, 1884. P. 221.
The Tyne, the Lort Burn and the Skerne. P. 299. .
’ On a Spinal Column .of Loxomma Allmanm (Huxley). With Plate P. 349,

Vol. ix.
A Catalogue of the Place Names in Teesdale. P.1
Vol. x.
A Descnptlon of Stump Cross Cavern near Pateley Bridge. P. 190.
Vol. xi.

Memoir of the Life of John Hancock. With Portrait. P. 1
. On the Egg. First Lecture of a Series, With Introduction. P. 253.
et . ..  PUBLICATIONS OTHER THAN MEDICAL.

Notice of the Life of T. M. Greenhow M. D with List of his Publications,
1881.

.A Visit to Madeira in the Winter 1880-81. Two Lectures at the Lit. and -
Phil., Newcastle. 1882.

The ¢ Three Indian Kings’ Tavern on the Quayside, Newcastle. 1888.

History of the Medical School, afterwards the Durham. College of Medi-
cine,from 1832 to 1872. 1890.

Local Dialect Dialogues.. 1890.

The, Newcastle Medical Society a Hundred Years Ago W1’ch Blooraphlca]
Notices of Members. 1891. o

The Barber-Surgeons and- Cha_ndlers of Newcastle. 1891.

- GEORGE IRVING.
- lsss.

Born— December 27, 1826, son of James Irving, farmer, at
Howwlllmde Dumfriesshire, George Irving came to the North
of England in 1855 as rent collector for the North:Eastern Rail-
way. - He had previously filled various appointments in-Scotland
and Yorkshire, and came hither provided with a good equip-
ment in land surveying and the management of landed property.
In no long time he emerged from ‘the position- of collecting rents,
and became an estate agent for the Company ~ That position
he continued-to occupy till March, 1906, when he retired,
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having completed fifty-one years’ service, and attained the -
- great age of seventy-nine years. On the 29th of September
following he died. :

Mr. Irving added nothing to our Archacologia, but took an
active part in our meetings, occasionally helped in our discus-
sions, and exhibited, or presented, various objects relating to the
history of the past. Thus:—

PROCEEDINGS OF THE SOCIETY. SER,IES II.
Vol. vii,
On the Merkland Cross in Dumfriesshire. With Drawing. P. 51.
Vol. viii.
On Excavations at Birrenswark, Dumfriesshire. P. 218.
Vol. ix.

On the Death of James Macdonald, LL.D., a Vice-President of the Scot-
tish Society of Ant1quar1es P. 217

SIR WILLIAM CRO‘SSMAN, K.C.M.G.
1888.

Major General Sir William Crossman was a son of Robert
Crossman, of Cheswick House, near Beal, and the Manor House,
Holy Island, and was born June 30, 1830. He was educated at
the Royal Military Academy, Woolwich, became a Lieut. R.E.
in 1848; in charge of Public Works, Western Australia, in
1852; secretary to Royal Commission on the Defences of Canada
in 1862; assistant director of works for fortifications in 1874-75;
special commissioner to Griqualand West in 1875; inspector of
Submarine Mining Defences in 1878-81; and M.P. for Ports-
mouth in 1885-92. His honours were C.M.G. 1876 and K.C.M.G.
1884. He was a J.P. for Northumberland, a member of the Sur-
tees Society, a Fellow of the Royal Colonial Institute and of the
Royal Geographical Society, a member of the committee of the
Durham and Northumberland Architectural and Archaeological
Society, and an associate of the Institute of Civil E Engineers. On
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the death of his father, he took up his residence in Northumber-
land, and in 1888 joined our Society, of which he became a vice- -
president. As soon as he had fairly settled down amongst us he
began a series of excavations at Holy Island, and his contribu-
tions to the Society related chiefly thereto ; at the same time, as a
military engineer, he interested himself in endeavouring to solve
the perplexing problems of the Roman lines of defencein the dis-
trict. He died in April, 1901. )
His antiquarian papers and communications are as follows : —
' ARCHABOLOGTA AELIANA. SERIES II.
: ’ Vol. xvi.
A Bull of Adrian 1v relal"ting to Neasham Priory, Co. Durham. P. 268.
PROCEEDINGS OF THE SOCIETY. SERIES II.
' Vol. iii.
An Address upon Holy Island, delivered within the ruins, on the occasion
of the Society’s visit, with the Berwickshire Naturalists’ Club, in August,
1888. P. 400.

Documents relating to Holy Island. P. 404.
On St. Cuthbert’s Island. P. 408.
: Vol. vii.

A Similar Address to our Members at a Country Meeting held at Holy
Island in June, 1895. P. 73.

Notes on an old Oak Frame-work near Kyloe Church. P. 173.

Address on the so-called ‘ Turf-wall’ at Appletree, Cumberland, and the
Camp at Aesica, during the Pilgrimage of the Roman Wall in June, 1896.
Pp. 217, 227.

Address on the Lines of the Vallum. P. 285,

Vol. viii.
On Discoveries at Aesica. P. 89.

THOMAS McALL FALLOW, F.S.A.
Correspondent, 1888.

) Thomas McAll Fallow, born in London, November 26,
1847, was the posthumous and only child of the Rev. Thomas
Mount Fallow, some time incumbent of St. Andrew’s, Well
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Street, London. He was educated privately and at St. John’s
College, Cambridge, where he graduated B.A. in 1870 and pro-
ceeded M.A. in 1873. He intended entering into holy orders,
and for some time served as a lay helper at Chapel Allerton, near
Leeds.  Settling at Coatham in Yorkshire, he became a recog-
nized authority in the North of England on old ecclesiastical
plate. 'He was elected a Fellow of the Society of Antiquaries of -
London in 1888, and in the ‘same year he became a correspond-
ent of our Society. He. contributed to the Religuary, of which he
became the editor in 1890, a series of articles on the cathedral
churches of Ireland, which were subsequently reprinted in book
form. Dying November 25, 1910, he was buried at Coatham.
His contributions to our-Society’s publications were as follows : —
ARCHAEOLOGIA AELIANA. SERIES II.
Vol. xxiv.

Abstract of Deeds in the Muniment-room, Kirkleatham Hall, relating to
the chantry of the B.V.M. in Chester-le-Street Church. P. 124.

Vol. xxv.

Obituary Notice of Wilfrid Joseph Cripps, C.B., F.S.A. With Portrait.
P. 188. . : .
PROCEEDINGS OF THE SOCIETY. SERIES II.

Vol. iii.
On Blyth Communion Plate. P. 267.
On Darlington St. Cuthbert’s Communion Plate. P. 412.
OrHER PUBLICATIONS.

The Swedish Ordinal.
The Cathedral Churches of Ireland.
With other books, papers, ete.

REV. HENRY SLATER.-
Correspondent, 1863; Member, 1888.

Mr. Slater was a scholar of Catherine College, Cambridge,
where he took his degrees, B.A. 1847, M.A. 1857. He was cur-
ate of St. Andrew’s, Liverpool, 1848-50, curate of Stanhope and
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Kastgate, 1850-66, and in the latter year was presented to the:
living of St. Andrew s, Bywell-on-Tyne, where he died in 1895.

He joined our Society in 1888, was made an hon. canon of New-
castle in 1889, and was also a J.P. for the county of Durham.

‘When at Stanhope he contributed to our literature a short paper,

which appears in

ARCHAEOLOGIA AELIANA. SERIES II.
Vol. vi.
Early British Remains from Allendale and Weardale. P. 168.

JOHN GREEN WALLER, F.S.A.
Correspondent, 1889

John Green Wafler, born about 1813, was, 1n his day, a lead-
ing authority upc!n medieval brasses. He was one of the
founders of the British Archaeological Association in 1844, and
was elected a Fellow of the Society of Antiquaries of London,
May 27, 1886. He contributed very numerous papers to the
publications of the last-mentioned society, to the Archaeological
Jouwrnal, and to the Journal of the Archaeological Association.
He died October 19, 1905, aged 92 years. His contributions to
the publications of our Society were as follows:—

ARCHAEOLOGIA AELIANA. SERIES II.
Vol. xv.

Notes on Some Brasses in the Counties of Northumberland and Durham.
Illustrated. P. 76.

PROCEEDINGS OF THE SOCIETY. SERIES II.
Vol. iv.
On the Thornton Brass. P. 171.

OraeErR PUBLICATIONS.

On a Brass at Bishop Auckland, in the Proceedings of Society of
Antiquaries of London, Series 11, vol. xiii, p. 66.
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ROBERT LAING, M.R.C.S.

" 1890. o
Robert Laing, born at Whitfield in Northumberland, October
29, 1843, received -his early education at.the elementary school
ut'.Bllueban near that place; but on his father’s appointment as
steward at Jesmond to Sir W. G. Armstrong (afterwards Lord
Armstrong), he was placed under Dr. Snape at Newcastle
Grammar school. ~After leaving school he entered the drawing
office of the Elswick firm, but was afterwards entered at the
Newcastle College of Medicine ; where between the years 1865 and
1868 he took medals for botany, anatomy, physiology, dissec-
tions, midwifery, medical jurisprudence and medicine. He
qualified as a member of theRoyal College of Surgeons of Eng-
land and as a Licentiate of the Royal College of Physicians, Edin-
burgh, in 1869. After practising in the City Road, Newcastle,
for a short time, he established himself at Blyth, when he died
October 8, 1912. He became a member of our Society in.1890

and contributed to its publications : —-
ARCHAEOLOGIA AELIANA., SERIES II.

Vol. xv.
Notes on the Tarset-burn Skeleton. P. 51.

REV. JOHN WALKER:
- 1891. .
The Rev. John Walker, born February 10, 1837, at Gigg,
a hamlet in the parish of Bury, in Lancashire, son of James
Walker, was educated at St. Bees College in Cumberland, and
was ordained deacon in 1865 and priest in the following year.
After serving as curate in Variogs ‘parishes in Northumberland
and in Cheshire he was presented in 1880 to the desirable rectory
of Whalton, where the remainder of his use,fulllife was spent.
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Elected an early member of the Durham and Northumberland
Architectural and Archaeological Society, he joined the Berwick-
shire Naturalists’ Club, in 1878, and our Society in 1891, was
appointed in 1897 an honorary canon of Newcastle, and in 1902
rural dean of Morpeth deanery. He died at Whalton rectory,
June 22, 1910. His contributions to the pubhcatlons of the
Society were as follows: — :

ARCHAEOLOGIA AELIANA. SERIES II.
) Vol. xxv.
The ‘Midsummer Bonfire at Whalton. P. 181.

" PROCEEDINGS OF THE SOCIETY. SERIES III.
. R i Vol. iii.
On Whalton Church. P. 269.
'HISTORY oF THE BERWICKSHIRE NATURALISTS’ CLUB.
Vol. xvi.

Pres1den‘b1a.1 Address to the Berwickshire Naturalists’ Club, delivered
October 13, 1897. P. 133.

Reports of Various Meetings of the Berw1cksh1re Naturalists’ Club in the
year 1897. Pp. 137, 149, 152, 156, 158. .

WILFRID JOSEPH CRIPPS, M.A., C.B., F.S.A.
Correspondent, 1892.

Wllfnd Joseph Cripps, the author of a famous book on Old.
English Plate, was born June 8, 1841, the eldest son of William
Cripps, sometime M.P. for Cirencester. He graduated at Trinity
College, Oxford, .v:vas "captain and hon-major of the North
Gloucester Militia, J. P.-for Gloucester and Kent, called to the
Bur-in 1865, and received the honour of C.B. in 1887. He was
elected. a-Fellow of the London Soc1etv of Antiquaries in 1880,
and a-few years before his death became a member of the London
Goldsmiths’ Company. In second nuptials he married Countess
Helen Bismarck, a relative of the great German Chancellor. He
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received much assistance in the compilat{on. of his great work
above named, from Thomas Sewell, a well known silversmith
in Newcastle, Mr. Thomas Taylor of Chipchase Castle, and
Mr. Robert Blair, one of our secretaries. He died on the 26th
October, 1903, having written for our Society

ARCHAEOLOGIA AELIANA. SERIES II.
Vol. xv.

A Bronze Grave Chalice from Hexham Priory Church. With Plate.
P. 192. :
Vol. xvi.

Old Church Plate in the Counties of Northumberland and Durham.
P.249. ' .

FRANCIS RCBERT NEWTON HASWELL,; V.D.
1898.

F. R..N. Haswell, architect, born in Southwark, London, on
March 31, 1834, was a son of the Rev. Partis Haswell, Wesleyan
minister. Educated at Taunton College, he came to the north of
England and settled at North Shields, where, for a time, he was
in partnership with Robert James Johnson. A Fellow of the
Royal Institute of British Architects, he became, also, a member
of the Architectural and Archaeological Society of Durham and
Northumberland, and one of a committee appointed by that body
in 1866 to report upon projected alterations in churches with
the object of preventing vandalism. He was a member also of the
Tyneside Naturalists’ Field Club and the Natural History Society
of Northumberland, Durham and Newcastle. An early supporter

of the volunteer movement, he was one of the original members of -

the Tynemouth Artillery Volunteers, the pioneer corps of the
country. For his services in the movement he earned the V.D.
decoration, and was allowed, upon retirement, to retain the title
of Lieutenant Colonel. He was a justice of the peace for the
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borough of Tynemouth, and a frequent attender at our Society’s
meetings. His'death occurred suddenly on the 18th of November,
1812. ‘

Mr. Haswell’s contributions to our literature were as
follows : — '
PROCEEDINGS OF THE SOCIETY. SERIES II.

Vol. viii. .
On a Silver Beaker and an Oval Badge of Silver. Illustrated. P. 154.
On a One-handled Vase of Bronze of Roman Date, and a Small Mask of

Bronze of the Same Period. Illustrated. P. 240.
On a Pewter Spoon dredged out of the Tyne. P. 256.

Vol. ix. .

On Tynemouth Lighthouse, and Barfon Kirk in Westmorland. TIllus-

trated. P. 11.
: IBiD. SERIES III.

. Vol. i.
On a Folio Service Missal, printed' at Paris in 1683. P. 258.
Vol. ii.
Bishop Cosin’s Tract on Transubstantiation and an Autograph of Brad-

shaw the Regicide. Illustrated. P. 2.

Another Note on the Bronze Vase above named. P. 223.

Vol. iii.

A Plan of the Sittings in Lanchester Church, and a Receipt, dated March
27, 1813, for a Fine of 10!, Exemption Money, for not serving in the Militia.
P. 14. i ' '

On an Altar Slab in Aycliffe Church. P. 100. .

On Heighington Church, Durham, and Compton Church, Surrey. Illus-

trated. P. 192. )
On a Font in St. Martin’s Church, Exeter. Illustrated. P. 236.

Vol. v.
On an Old Tower at Earsdon. P. 138.

JAMES PIGOT PRITCHETT.
1901.

;T ames Pigoi.; Pritchett, the younger, born at York, May 14,
1830, son of James Pigot Pritchett of York, architect, was edu-
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cated at St. Peter’s school in that city and, havin;g qualified,
established himself in Darlington as an architect and -surveyor.
He became a member of our Society: in 1901 ; and died September

| 22, 1911. His contributions to the publications of the Society
were o
ARCHAEOLOGIA AELIANA. SERIES II.

Vol. xxiv.
On Discoveries in the Chapel at Raby Castle. With Plates. P. 65.

Bﬁrmsn ARCHAEor,éaICAL ASSOCIATION JOURNAL.
. Vol. xlii.
The Works of the Nevils Round Darlington. With Plans. P. 217.

Notes on Places visited during the Congress of the Archaeological Associa-
tion of 1886. P. 234. ) i

"Vol. xlvi.

The Tomb of Joan Beaufort, Countess of Westmorland. P. 111.
Vol. xlviii.

Selby Abbey Church. With Plates. Pp. 93 and 285.



